
Minutes 
Special Council Meeting 

June 24, 2014 
 

On this 24th day of June 2014, at 6:00 p.m. the City Council of the City of Devine convened in a 
Special Meeting; the same being opened to the public at their regular meeting place; thereof, at City 
Hall, 303 S. Teel Drive, Devine, Texas. Notice of said Meeting having been prescribed in Chapter 
551, Government Code, and Vernon’s Texas Codes, Annotated, and the following members being 
present: 
 

Mayor William L. Herring 
                                                           Alderman Hal Lance 
     Alderwoman Kathy Wilkins 

    Alderman David Espinosa 
      
Absent being Alderman Steve A. Lopez and Alderman David Valdez; thus, constituting a quorum. 
 
Personnel present: Dora V. Rodriguez, City Secretary, Assistant City Administrator; Darrell 
Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer; Jim Lawler, Planning & Zoning Commissioner; and Troy 
Martin, Building, Electrical, & Mechanical Inspector. 
 
Others present: William Matt Hales, Jr. of Devine; Melissa Mann of Devine; Misty Thompson-
Houston of Devine; Doug Trott of Devine; Joy E. Moore of Devine; Patrick Burrell of Devine; Bill 
& Barbara Nelson of Devine;.Sonia Lance of Devine; Esperanza Calderon, 715 W. Slaughter Lane 
#635, Austin, TX  78742; Ashley Calame, and M. Christine Schnieder 
 
Mayor Herring, presiding, declared the meeting open. 
 
The first order of business was to discuss and consider recommendations of the Planning & Zoning 
Commission for Meeting held on June 16, 2014 and Public Hearings on Final Report: 
 

a. Request made by Joy E. Moore for a variance to Appendix A., Article, 13, Section 2 
of the Zoning Ordinance which states that “No porch, enclosed or unenclosed; 
stoop, canopy, patio or other structure shall extend into the front yard, except that 
the eaves may extend four feet” to construct an attached carport to her residence at 
506 Mockingbird Lane which is described as Colonial Oaks Subdivision, Block 12 
(NCB 136), Lot 4. 

 
Mayor Herring declared the Public Hearing open to the public at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Mr. Matt Hales addressed the Council and stated that he resided at 504 Mockingbird Lane.  He 
asked that the City Council deny granting the requested variance until the existing zoning ordinance 
violations at 506 Mockingbird Lane have been abated.  He stated that he had brought photographs 
of the violations and informed the Council that the violations included the encroachment of the wall 
on the East property line that is currently covered by black plastic and has been for the past two 
months, the shrubs and posts installed along the street in violation of the City’s ordinance regarding 
vision obstructions, and a new wall that is approximately eighteen-feet long and nine-feet tall and  



Special Council Minutes 
June 24, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
made out of cinder-blocks without the required permits or engineering, and the encroachment of a 
metal storage building into the side set-back of the property.  He stated that he felt that it would be 
fair for the city require her to comply with the outstanding violations before granting her a variance.  
Alderman Espinosa asked to see the photographs that Mr. Hales had brought to the meeting.  Mr. 
Hales provided them along with the complaint forms that he had submitted to the City for the 
ordinance violations.  He also stated that he had filed a complaint on February 8, 2014 regarding the 
wall on the East side of the property and the plants and posts along the street and that nothing had 
been done by the City except for the stop work order being placed on the wall. 
 
Patrick Burrell addressed the Council and stated that all of the building and the walls had the 
required permits issued and stated that, to his knowledge, there were no outstanding permits on the 
property and stated that Darrell Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer was welcome to come to the 
property to determine compliance.  He stated that the permit was obtained for the wall along the 
east property line and that they were not asked to remove the wall, but that they were ordered to 
stop work.  He stated that they were just asking for a variance for the carport. 
 
Grady Roberts, Attorney for Joy E. Moore, addressed the Council and stated that he was at the 
Planning and Zoning Meeting, as was the Mayor, and that he remembered Mr. Hales stating that he 
had no objection to the variance for the carport.  He also stated that the Planning & Zoning 
Commission stated that they were only considering was the requested variance for the carport and 
he assumed that the Council would be the same.  He stated that Mr. Hales should object now since 
he did not object during the Planning & Zoning meeting. 
 
Joy E. Moore addressed the Council and stated that she was just asking for a variance for a twenty-
foot by twenty-foot attached carport to be built on her property.  She stated that everything done on 
the property had gone through Code Compliance for everything and that no permits were lacking 
for anything on the property.  She stated that Matt Hales did not object at the Planning and Zoning 
meeting, but apparently he has had more time to think about the matter and bring up objections.  
She stated that the matter only related to her request for a variance for the carport and nothing else 
regarding her property.  She stated that she brought her attorney, Grady Roberts, and Patrick 
Burrell, a construction superintendent with her to answer any questions that the Council may have.  
She stated that Mr. Burrell was involved with all measurements and the permits for all work on her 
property.  She provided the Commissioners some of her background and informed them that she 
was a lifetime resident of Devine, that she was the daughter of Richard Marvin and Edith Moore, 
deceased, that she had a Bachelor’s and Master’s Degree for Our Lady of the Lake University, that 
she has worked at USAA for thirty years, and that she had volunteered many hours to youth events 
such as sports photography, and that she was the president and founder of Devine Friends of Kids.  
She stated that she purchased the property at 506 Mockingbird Lane in 1995 and that she had raised 
three children there, two of which were present at the meeting, and that she intended to retire there.  
She informed the Commissioners that Mockingbird Lane was a half-moon shape and described the 
location of her house as being in the middle and on the north side of this street.  She stated that 
when she purchased the home there was an existing twenty-foot by twenty-foot concrete slab was 
present next to the house, but the rest of the driveway was sand and gravel.  She informed the  



Special Council Minutes 
June 24, 2014 
Page 3 
 
 
Council that she had photographs with her that showed the property as it was at the time that she 
purchased it.  She said that recently she had a concrete circular driveway installed which connects to 
the pre-existing twenty-foot by twenty-foot slab.  Ms. Moore informed the Council that the 
proposed carport would be built on the original twenty-foot by twenty-foot slab and that it would 
not block the circular driveway.   She stated that the proposed carport would be attached to the 
eaves of the house and that it would not extend past the side of the house.  She stated that she also 
had photographs of the property after the installation of the circular driveway.  She stated that she 
wants to carport to match the style of her home and be built from wood and tin.  She stated that the 
tin will match the tin on the home and that the supports for the carport will be ten-inch diameter 
cedar poles, which will have metal anchors to the concrete driveway.  She stated that the carport 
would be open on three sides, with the closed side being the side attached to the house.  She stated 
that the carport would be twenty-seven feet away from the curb on Mockingbird Lane and it would 
be 5.2-feet, at its closest point, on the side property line that she shared with 508 Mockingbird Lane.   
She stated that there was a carport at 502 Mockingbird Lane was twenty-five feet away from the 
curb of Mockingbird Lane at its closest point.  She stated that she had photographs of her property 
and the carport at 502 Mockingbird Lane.  She stated that the Planning & Zoning Commission had 
met regarding her request on June 16, 2014 for this variance and that they had voted unanimously 
for the granting of the variance without any objections.  Alderman Espinosa requested to see the 
photographs that Ms. Moore had brought to the meeting. 
 
Mayor Herring asked Ms. Moore if the property at 502 Mockingbird Lane belonged to Marion 
Taylor and Ms. Moore stated that it was.  Ms. Moore also stated that there was an attached carport 
in front of the house that was across the street from her home.  Mayor Herring asked if the property 
across the street from her home belonged to the Ramirez family and Ms. Moore stated that it was. 
 
No one else desired to speak on the matter. 
 
At 6:14 p.m., Mayor Herring closed the Public Hearing. 
 
The second order of business was to discuss and consider taking action on the request made by Joy 
E. Moore for a variance to Appendix A., Article, 13, Section 2 of the Zoning Ordinance which states 
that “No porch, enclosed or unenclosed; stoop, canopy, patio or other structure shall extend into 
the front yard, except that the eaves may extend four feet” to construct an attached carport to her 
residence at 506 Mockingbird Lane which is described as Colonial Oaks Subdivision, Block 12 (NCB 
136), Lot 4. 
 
Alderwoman Wilkins stated that she felt that there were some issues that she would like to consult 
with legal counsel on before making a decision. 
 
Alderman Lance stated that he had a background in engineering and management and he agreed 
with Alderwoman Wilkins. 
 



Special Council Minutes 
June 24, 2014 
Page 4 
 
 
Mayor Herring asked Ms. Moore if the proposed carport would have a peaked roof with the ridge 
extending from the house, or if it would have a sloped roof from the eaves of the house.  Alderman 
Lance stated that he would like to see a site plan indicating the location of the carport and that the 
submitted diagram seemed to just indicate the framing layout for the carport.   
 
Mayor Herring stated that, through no fault of Ms. Moore, the street was zigzagged through the 
right-of-way to avoid removing trees when the street was paved.  Mayor Herring asked Darrell 
Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer, if he knew where the property line was located and if the 
survey pins for the property had been located.  Mr. Rawlings stated that in the times that he had 
visited the property he had not seen the location of the survey pins.  He also informed the Council 
that the Planning & Zoning Commissioners had asked Ms. Moore if she had determined the 
location of her property line was and if she knew where the survey pins were located, and she had 
stated that she did not, but that he did not know if this was still the case at this time.  Mayor Herring 
asked Ms. Moore if she had located her survey pins and and/or an existing survey of the property 
that indicated the location of her front and side property line location.  Ms. Moore stated that she 
did not currently have this information.  Mayor Herring stated that the location of the property lines 
on each property on this street may have considerable variations in their distance from the location 
of the curb.  He stated that he did not have an issue with the carport itself, but the location of if 
with regards to the property lines. 
 
Patrick Burrell stated that they were asking for the variance to be granted and that, if approved, they 
would have the survey pins located and a survey done.  Mayor Herring stated that he had an issue 
with the City granting the variance at this time without knowing the location of the property line.  
 
Mayor Herring stated that Ms. Moore stated that the carport will remain open on three sides with 
the fourth being attached to the house.  He asked what the distance would be from the carport to 
the wall on the East property line mentioned in the Public Hearing as it could be viewed as an 
enclosure, at least in part, of one side of the carport.  Ms. Moore stated that the carport would be 
five to seven feet from the wall as it currently exists.  Mayor Herring asked if Ms. Moore knew if this 
wall was located completely on her property and how close it was to her property line.  Ms. Moore 
stated that she would definitely be having a survey of the property done, but that the wall was a 
separate matter from her request.  Alderwoman Wilkins stated that she felt that it was related to her 
variance request.  Alderman Espinosa stated that locating the property line was the responsibility of 
the property owner and that he felt that it needed to be provided before a decision could be made 
on granting the variance.  Ms. Moore stated that she was seeking approval for the information 
provided and stated that if she did not meet the distances stated, the carport would not be built.  
Alderman Espinosa stated that he in inclined to motion to table the matter until a survey is done and 
provided to the city.   
 
 
 
 
 



Special Council Minutes 
June 24, 2014 
Page 5 
 
 
Patrick Burrell stated that they were just requesting a variance for a twenty-foot by twenty-foot 
carport.  Mayor Herring stated that the City is reluctant to grant the variance at this time pending 
verify the property line location and with relation to the wall that is already encroaching into the 
front property line.  Alderman Lance stated that the wall had still not been removed.  Patrick Burrell 
stated that they had not been asked to remove the wall and that the City had just ordered them to 
stop work on it. 
 
Mr. George asked the Council if the City had required surveys to be done for other carports, such as 
the one at 502 Mockingbird Lane.  Mayor Herring stated that in the past four years that he had been 
in office, he does not recall a variance request where the location of the property line was not 
known.  He also stated that it would be discussed with the City Attorney before the granting of the 
variance.  Mr. George asked the Council who the City Attorney was and Mayor Herring informed 
him that the City Attorney was Tom Cate, and, in his absence, Bobby-Jack Rushing.  He stated that 
neither one were able to attend tonight’s meeting. 
 
Motion by Alderwoman Wilkins, seconded by Alderman Espinosa to table the decision to grant or 
deny the variance to Appendix A., Article, 13, Section 2 of the Zoning Ordinance which states that 
“No porch, enclosed or unenclosed; stoop, canopy, patio or other structure shall extend into the 
front yard, except that the eaves may extend four feet” as requested by Joy E. Moore to construct an 
attached carport to her residence at 506 Mockingbird Lane which is described as Colonial Oaks 
Subdivision, Block 12 (NCB 136), Lot 4, until the City has an opportunity to speak with the City 
Attorney for legal counsel and the property owner submitting a survey of the property and having 
the survey pins located, unless legal counsel advises otherwise. 
 
   Ayes  --  Three – Aldermen Lance, Espinosa, Wilkins 
   Nays  --  None 
   Absent  --  Two – Aldermen Lopez, Valdez 
 
Motion carried.  
 
The third order of business was to discuss and consider approving the service agreement with 
Bureau Veritas for providing required plan reviews of any plans and/or specifications and all 
required inspections relating to new construction, alterations, or additions or any work requiring the 
issuance of a permit by City Ordinance except for any plans and/or specifications or inspections 
relating to Floodplain Development and Fire Safety, Prevention, and/or Protection and determine 
an effective date.  
 
Mayor Herring asked the Aldermen present if any of them had attended the Town Hall meeting that 
was held with Bureau Veritas.  Alderwoman Wilkins stated that she did not attend the Town Hall 
Meeting, but that she was present when the presentation was given to the City Council.  Aldermen 
Lance and Espinosa stated that they had attended the Town Hall Meeting. 
 
 



Special Council Minutes 
June 24, 2014 
Page 6 
 
 
Mayor Herring asked Darrell Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer if he would explain the services 
provided by this company.  Mr. Rawlings stated that Bureau Veritas was a world-wide company that 
provided plan review and inspection services for construction.  He stated that all required plans and 
specification were to be overnighted to the company by FedEx and that they worked directly with 
the engineers, architects, or designers to ensure compliance with the City’s adopted codes and then 
notified the City when the review was completed and approved so that the City could issue the 
required permits.  He explained that once the permits were issues, Bureau Veritas conducted all of 
the required inspections and worked directly with the contractors to schedule inspections and  
resolve any issues.  He informed the Council that all of the plan review and inspections are available 
to the city on a website operated by Bureau Veritas so the City can stay informed about a projects 
status.  He also stated that Bureau Veritas had an inspection request hotline and that inspections 
could also be requested by e-mail and that they ensured that any inspections received by 5:00 p.m. 
would be conducted the following day.  Once the required final inspections were approved, he 
explained, Bureau Veritas notified the city of their approval and left the issuance of Certificates of 
Occupancy or Certificates of Completion to the City to ensure that all fees were collected and any 
other requirements, such as business licensing, or inspections, such as for development in the 
floodplain or relating to fire safety and/or protection systems were completed and approved by the 
City.   Mayor Herring asked Mr. Rawlings who would be handling the plan reviews and inspections 
pertaining required by the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance and the adopted Fire Code.  Mr. 
Rawlings stated that he would continue to perform these plan reviews and inspections. 
 
Mayor Herring asked if anyone present would like to speak regarding this item. 
 
Misty Thompson-Houston, with G & E Custom Homes and Construction, Inc. addressed the 
Council and stated that she had been unable to attend the Town Hall Meeting, but she had several 
questions regarding this matter as follows.  She asked about any changes to fees in association with 
the change to Bureau Veritas.  Mayor Herring provided the proposed changes to the permit fee 
schedule to Mrs. Thompson-Houston and asked Mr. Rawlings if he could respond to Mrs. 
Thompson-Houston’s questions.  Mr. Rawlings stated that the City was considering going to a single 
permit system, as suggested by Bureau Veritas, which would require a single permit for any 
construction work done on a residential property, which was for one- and two-family dwellings, and 
a single permit for any construction work on commercial properties.  He explained that this would 
hopefully alleviate previous issues regarding some permits for a project being overlooked by the 
contractor until after the work had started on the project, reduce the time required by city staff to 
prepare the permits, and reduce the amount of paperwork  involved in the process.  He stated the 
Bureau Veritas based their fees and the recommended city permit fees on the 1997 Uniform 
Building Code fee schedule.  He informed Mrs. Thompson-Houston and the Council that Bureau 
Veritas provided the City with a price comparison based on information he submitted to them 
regarding various types of projects and that there would be little change in the permitting costs 
charged to the public.  He explained that permitting and inspection fees submitted to Bureau Veritas 
for the comparison were for two different single-family residences, one which was approximately 
1,000 square feet in area and another that was approximately 2,000 square feet in area, one multi-
family dwelling, and one large retail business and the pricing comparison showed some projects  



Special Council Minutes 
June 24, 2014 
Page 7 
 
 
would have a slightly higher cost and some would have a slightly lower cost compared to the current 
fee schedule.  He stated that, if he remembered correctly, all of the fees only varied $200.00 or less 
except for the multi-family dwelling which had a considerably lower cost under Bureau Veritas than 
under the current fee schedule.  He also stated that Bureau Veritas does not charge any re-inspection 
fees and explained that the city is charged one-flat fee for the project regardless of the number of 
inspections; however, Bureau Veritas did notify the City that the City could charge re-inspection fees 
if it chose to.  He stated that he had met with the City Administrator in preparing the proposed fee 
schedule and that the re-inspection fees were not proposed to be charged under the new fee 
schedule. In response to the question regarding how long the plan review process would take, Mr. 
Rawlings stated that he could not remember an exact time frame but that Bureau Veritas indicated 
that the plan reviews were done quickly as long as all of the required information was submitted and 
they did not have to wait to receive information after the initial submittal.  He also stated that there 
would be some aspects of the code which the city had not previously enforced, such as the energy 
efficiency of the building in accordance with the International Energy Efficiency Code, which was 
adopted by the state and by the City. 
 
Alderman Espinosa stated that he had nothing against this company, but wanted to know if the City 
had a “Plan B”.  He stated that it seems to him like someone had made up their mind that the City 
should go this way, but what are the options.  Mayor Herring stated that this started when the Texas 
State Board of Plumbing Examiners came to the city and notified the city that the person that was 
performing the city’s plumbing inspections could not continue to conduct these inspections because 
he lacked the required state certification as a state licensed plumbing inspector.  He stated that the 
city searched for a qualified person who would perform these inspections and found Mr. Bill Smith 
out of the Jourdanton area to perform these inspections; however, Mr. Smith was performed 
inspections for several different cities and could only be in Devine to conduct inspections on 
Thursdays.  Mayor Herring stated that this resulted in some contractors having complaints and 
concerns regarding waiting for the inspector.  The Mayor stated that he had asked Gary Pelech, City 
Administrator if there were any other options regarding inspections and he informed the Mayor 
about this company.  He advised Alderman Espinosa that the use of Bureau Veritas had not been 
set in stone.  He stated that Plan B would be to keep everything as it is, with plumbing inspections 
only being conducted on Thursdays, and Plan C would be to try to find someone qualified to do the 
inspections that were either in the office or on call for inspections every day.  Alderman Espinosa 
asked if there were any other companies like Bureau Veritas that may be interested in conducting the 
inspections for the City.  Mayor Herring stated that this was the only company that put on a 
presentation for the Council and held a Town Hall Meeting regarding their services.  Alderman 
Espinosa stated that he was for change and that Darrell Rawlings needed help, but that the City also 
needed a new office due to size limitations with the existing buildings, and there were other needs 
that the City had.  He stated that he did not feel that the city was at a point where Bureau Veritas 
was needed at this time.  He stated that if there was more commercial development and subdivisions 
being developed in the city, he could see the city needing this.  He also stated that he had received 
contact from some people in the community and that he felt that the City was not ready for this.  
Alderman Espinosa stated that he felt that the city should not enter into this agreement.   
 



Special Council Minutes 
June 24, 2014 
Page 8 
 
 
Alderman Lance asked about the term of the agreement.  Mayor Herring advised that the agreement 
provided that the agreement could be terminated by either party provided that written notice is sent 
providing thirty days’ notice.  Mayor Herring stated that the matter could be tabled until there was a 
full council present, to have more information provided, or pending another town hall meeting.  
Alderman Lance stated that, in consideration of the way Devine is growing, using this company 
would be a good way to move the city into the 21st century and that this would be best for the city to 
go with this company.  Mayor Herring asked Alderman Lance if he was confident that he received 
enough information through the presentations and he replied yes. 
 
Alderwoman Wilkins stated that she wanted what would be best for the City.  She stated that the 
City was growing and she felt that there was going to need to be some type of change and she felt 
that going with Bureau Veritas would be the way to go.  Mayor Herring asked Alderwoman Wilkins 
if he was confident that he received enough information through the presentations and she replied 
yes. 
 
Darrell Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer, asked the Council if they wanted to have any discussion 
on the effective date to start using Bureau Veritas.  Alderman Lance asked Mr. Rawlings if he had 
any suggestions regarding the start date.  Mr. Rawlings stated that his biggest concern was to make 
sure the public is aware.  Dora V. Rodriguez, Assistant City Administrator, stated that Tom Cate, 
City Attorney, had always recommended that the City make changes such as this effective thirty days 
after the council meeting in which it was approved.  Alderman Lane asked if it would cost the city by 
waiting to use Bureau Veritas and it was discussed that there would not be a substantial change in 
city revenue either way.    
 
Mrs. Thompson-Houston addressed the Council and asked some questions regarding engineered 
foundations.  Mr. Rawlings stated that some sample permit applications and plan submittal 
information had been provided to the City by Bureau Veritas and that these forms were currently 
being modified to fit the City of Devine; however, in the event of any questions found during 
Bureau Veritas’ plan review, would result in Bureau Veritas contacting the engineer, and/or 
contractor prior to permit issuance.  She asked about the potential for discrepancies or differences 
between the engineer’s inspection and Bureau Veritas’ inspection of the foundation.  Mr. Rawlings 
stated that he felt that any issues would be resolved during the plan review process and stated that 
Bureau Veritas would be conducting their inspections on the work specified in the approved plans.  
She had concerns over her company being a small company and building custom homes where there 
were frequently changes to electrical and occasionally plumbing fixtures.  It was briefly discussed 
that the next item the Council would be discussing would be the city going to a single permit system 
and the associated permit fee changes.  Mr. Rawlings stated that the single-permit system and 
changes in permit fees would be determined solely on valuation and that the City would no longer 
require electrical or plumbing fixture counts. 
 
 
 
 



Special Council Minutes 
June 24, 2014 
Page 9 
 
 
Mayor Herring asked Ms. Thompson-Houston if she was comfortable with the information that had 
been provided and that he was sorry that she missed the Town Hall Meeting.  Ms. Thompson-
Houston stated that she was sorry that she missed it too.  She stated that she was not real 
comfortable at this point, primarily because she felt like she didn’t have enough information to be 
comfortable.  She stated that their construction company was small and not a large company like 
K.B. Homes.  She stated that she was glad to know about the terms of the agreement because if the 
City used this company and found out that this was not good for the City, at least the City could get 
out of the agreement.  She stated that she did not feel like she had enough information, but she was 
not saying that she was against it, and stated that the plumbing inspections only being conducted 
once a week had been a major issue.  Mayor Herring stated that the change was being done primarily 
for the contractors so that their needs could be met and that the City had nothing against the 
Inspectors that the city currently uses.  Mayor Herring stated that this company provides inspection 
services for cities the size of Devine and even cities that are smaller.  She stated that she knew some 
contractors that built in Hondo and Castroville that she would speak to.  Mr. Rawlings stated that he 
regularly speaks with the Code Compliance Department in Hondo, and that he had never heard of 
any problems that the city had with the service that Bureau Veritas performed.  He also stated that 
the city had significantly reduced the ISO rating for the City and that he hoped that going to a 
company such as Bureau Veritas may help to further reduce this rating which is one of the factors 
used by insurance providers in determining insurance rates.  Mayor Herring asked if there were any 
other contractors present that wanted to speak on this matter. 
 
Troy Martin, Building, Electrical, and Mechanical Inspector, addressed the Council and stated that 
he was also a local builder.  He stated that the city would be losing local control by going with this 
company.  He stated that he would much contact a local inspector to ask a question to than a 
company that has its headquarters in a different region.  He stated that the plumber, Bo Callaway, 
had told him that there were a lot of plumber’s who would not perform inspections in Hondo 
because of Bureau Veritas.  He also stated that the price per inspection from Bureau Veritas would 
be higher that the inspection fees currently charged and that Bureau Veritas’ fee per inspection 
would be between $75 and $100 as stated in a previous meeting that Mr. Rawlings was not present 
at. 
 
Alderman Espinosa asked Mayor Herring if Bureau Veritas would be willing to hold another Town 
Hall Meeting for contractors that missed the first one.  Mayor Herring stated that Bureau Veritas has 
told him that they would be happy to attend meetings or put on presentations if the city needed 
them. Alderman Espinosa stated that he would like to have all members of the Council present to 
make a decision on this matter. 
 
Mayor asked the Council if they had any further comments or questions after having heard from 
Mrs. Thompson-Houston and Mr. Martin.  Alderman Lance and Alderwoman Wilkins both stated 
that they had not further comments of questions. 
 
Motion by Alderman Lance to approve service agreement with Bureau Veritas for providing 
required plan reviews of any plans and/or specifications and all required inspections relating to new  



Special Council Minutes 
June 24, 2014 
Page 10 
 
 
construction, or alterations, additions or any work requiring the issuance of a permit by City 
Ordinance except for any plans and/or specifications or inspections relating to Floodplain 
Development and Fire Safety, Prevention, and/or Protection with the effective date to be set at the 
next City Council meeting, whether it is a regular or special meeting, seconded by Alderwoman 
Wilkins. 
 
   Ayes  --  Two – Aldermen Lance, Wilkins 
   Nays  --  One – Alderman Espinosa 
   Absent  --  Two – Aldermen Lopez, Valdez 
 
Motion carried.  
 
The fourth order of business was to discuss and consider changes to permit fees for construction 
permits in conjunction with changing to a single permit for residential construction projects and a 
single permit for commercial construction projects to include any and all trades and contractors 
involved in the project and determine an effective date. 
 
Mayor Herring asked Darrell Rawlings, Code Compliance Officer, to explain what was proposed.  
Mr. Rawlings advised the Council that the fee schedule presented to the Council in their packets was 
provided by Bureau Veritas and it was based on the fee schedule of the 1997 Uniform Building 
Code.  Alderman Lance inquired if this was the same permit fee schedule currently used by the City.  
Mr. Rawlings sated that it was not the current fee schedule and explained that consideration was 
given to Bureau Veritas’ suggestion that the City transition to a single-permit system where a single 
permit would be required for any work done on residential property and a single permit would be 
required for any work done on a commercial property.  He stated that the fees would be determined 
based on the valuation of the work being done instead of requiring a separate permit for each trade 
and having some based on valuation and others based on the number of fixtures.  With regards to 
plan reviews and plan review fees, he said that not all residential permit would require a plan review 
depending on the project and that the plan review fee would only be charged when an actual plan 
review would be performed on one- and two-family residential projects and that a plan review fee 
would be charged on all permits for commercial or multi-family projects.  He informed the Council 
that the fees were altered from Bureau Veritas’ recommendation to ensure that all of the fees that 
Bureau Veritas charged the city would be collected; the recommended city permit fees would have 
resulted in a loss to the city for any small construction projects.  The fees, he explained, were 
increased by approximately $10.00 to achieve this.  
 
Alderman Lance asked what percentage of permits issued would result in a loss of revenue under the 
fee schedule as provided to city.  Mr. Rawlings stated that it varied month to month, but some 
examples of the type of projects that this would typically apply to would be replacement of water-
heaters, replacement of building water lines, building sewer lines, or meter-loop repair or 
replacement.   
 
 



Special Council Minutes 
June 24, 2014 
Page 11 
 
 
Mayor Herring asked if the proposed fee schedule had been posted or published to inform the 
public.  Dora V. Rodriguez, Assistant City Administrator, advised that the fee schedule had not been 
publicized and that they could only be publicized following the Council’s approval of them.  
Alderman Lance stated that he remembered this from the change of fees for Temporary Sale 
Permits several months ago.  Mayor Herring asked if these fees were made available at the Town 
Hall Meeting and was advised by Mr. Rodriguez and Mr. Lance that they were not and that the fee 
schedule had not been prepared at the time of the Town Hall Meeting.  Mayor Herring asked if 
there should be a meeting held on the fees because there would be changes.  Mayor Herring asked if 
anyone present would like to speak regarding this matter.   
 
Mrs. Thompson-Houston stated that she would like to compare the proposed fees with the current 
fee schedule.  She stated that Devine charges a lot more than other cities in the area.  She stated that 
permits she recently obtained in Pearsall was a fraction of what the fees were in the City of Devine, 
mentioning that by the time utility tap fees and deposits were paid and the permit fees were paid 
they were already in excess of $3000.00 before they even break ground.  She was concerned about 
there be any type of increase in fees.  Ms. Rodriguez stated that the permit fees were intended to 
cover the cost that the city incurred from the third parry inspectors. 
 
Mayor Herring stated that he wished that the fees were made available at the Town Hall Meeting. 
 
Darrell Rawlings provided Mrs. Thompson-Houston and the Council the existing fee schedule to 
compare fees.  He informed the Council that it was not a real simple comparison because the 
current fee schedule has the schedule for separate Building, Plumbing, Electrical and Mechanical 
Permits and the proposed fees are for a single permit.  He also stated that currently the Plumbing 
and Electrical Permit fees are based on fixture counts.  He told the Council that there had been 
issues with requiring separate permits due to the subcontractors sometimes obtaining their individual 
permit and at other time the general contractor or property owner obtaining the permit.  He 
explained that this has resulted in cases where work was started without the permit being issued, 
despite all information being submitted to the city and approved for permit issuance; a situation 
which should not occur under the single-permit system. He informed the Council that the fee 
comparison that Bureau Veritas had done indicated that there would not be a significant change in 
the fees charged to the public.  Alderwoman Wilkins asked what option the City had and stated that 
whether the city hired someone to be on staff or hired a different third party inspector that met state 
licensing requirements to improve their availability for inspections, there would have to be change to 
fees.  It was discussed that there was a thirty-day severability clause to the agreement in the event 
that the City wasn’t pleased with Bureau Veritas services.  Alderwoman Wilkins stated that she did 
not see any problem with trying Bureau Veritas and stated that  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Special Council Minutes 
June 24, 2014 
Page 12 
 
 
Glenn Thompson stated that he had spoken with other contractors that have done where Bureau 
Veritas were the inspectors and that they had an issue with getting an inspector out to conduct an 
inspection.  He asked who he needed to contact if this was the case after the city made the change.  
Mayor Herring informed him that he would need to contact the city if this happens.  Mr. Rawlings 
stated that Bureau Veritas will not give a specific time of day when the inspection will be conducted, 
but have stressed to the City than any inspection requested by 5pm would be conducted the 
following day and the Supervisor that has been in contact with the City has stated that they will do 
everything to help out the City and its citizens in any emergency situation. 
 
No one else present desired to speak. 
 
Alderman Espinosa stated that he was considering not making any changes. 
 
Motion by Alderman Lance to approve the proposed changes to permit fees for construction 
permits and the change to a single permit for residential construction projects and a single permit for 
commercial construction projects to include any and all trades and contractors involved in the 
project with the effective date to be set at the next City Council meeting, whether it is a regular or 
special meeting, seconded by Alderwoman Wilkins. 
 
   Ayes  --  Two – Aldermen Lance, Wilkins 
   Nays  --  One – Alderman Espinosa 
   Absent  --  Two – Aldermen Lopez, Valdez 
 
Motion carried.  
 
There being no further business to come before the governing body, motion made by Alderman 
Lance, seconded by Alderwoman Wilkins to adjourn. 
 

Ayes  --  Three – Aldermen Lance, Wilkins, Espinosa 
   Nays  --  None  
   Absent  --  Two – Aldermen Lopez, Valdez 
 
Motion carried.  
 
 
 
             
         Mayor 
 
 
 
      
      City Secretary 


